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CHAIR BAISA: ... (gavel). .. Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: The meeting of the Maui County Council Planning Committee will come to
order. Today is July 24th and it's about ten minutes after nine. With a quorum present
we're ready to go. Before we begin our meeting, I would like to ask anyone in the
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audience who has a cell phone or a beeper or anything that makes noise if you would
please put it on the silent mode while we have our meeting so that we will not have to
deal with interruptions. And I'd like to do my intro ... introductions.
This morning, we have our Committee Members and we are all here this morning. Thank
you, Committee Members. I have such a great and loyal Committee. My Vice-Chair,
Jo Anne Johnson, is here. Thank you, Jo Anne. Our Council Chair, Riki Hokama. Good
morning, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good morning.
CHAIR BAlSA: And Councilmember Bill Kauakea Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Good morning, Bill. And Councilmember Michael Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much, Council Members. You're a wonderful Committee.
Also, from the Department of the Corporation Counsel, we have Michael Hopper, our
Deputy Corporation Counsel. Good morning, Mike. And from the Executive Branch, we
have Jeff Hunt, our Planning Director. Thank you, Jeff.
MR. HUNT: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: And we have our State Government Representatives, Laura Thielen. She is
from the State. She's the State Planning Director. Welcome, Laura. And we have some
welcome leis for you. And for the lady that's with you, Ruby Edwards, AlCP. She's a
Planner in the State Office of Planning. Welcome, ladies. Thank you for coming today.
My Committee Staff, I have David Raatz, our Legislative Attorney, and we have Clarita
Balala, our Committee Secretary.
I'd like to thank everyone for being here this morning to discuss this very, very
interesting subject. Public testimony will be accepted for the item on the agenda today
starting in a few moments. Those who are wishing to testify should sign up at the
secretary's desk here. Testimony will be limited to three minutes. Testifiers are
requested to state their name for the record and to indicate if they are representing
anybody but themselves.
The item, we have just one item on our agenda today but a very important item and this is
PC-41. So, if we could just go ahead with our testimony on that topic and then that,
actually, I'll tell you about the topic before we do the testimony. The item is called
Sustainable Agricultural and Rural Planning. This manner ... matter was initiated last
term by then Councilmember Charmaine Tavares. As we know, she's now our Mayor.
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Councilmember Tavares requested that the Committee review of the, she wanted a
review of the County's efforts to facilitate implementation of Acts 183 and 205 of the
2005 State Legislative session relating to agricultural and rural planning.
Today marks the first opportunity for a Council Committee discussion on this item. We
are honored to have representatives from the State Office of Planning with us today to
provide a status report on Sustainable Agricultural and Rural Planning throughout the
State and in Maui County. With the County's General Plan update currently underway,
this is a very timely topic for our discussion. I am very eager to receive the presentation
from the State Office of Planning but first I'd like to have us do our public testimony.
Without objection, the Committee will now accept any public testimony on this item.
Our first testifier who signed up before we got started here will be Warren Watanabe.
And he is the only testifier who has signed up. So, if there's anyone else, would you
please come forward and sign up. Mr. Watanabe .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. W AT ANABE: Good morning, Chair Baisa, and Members of the Maui County Planning
Committee. My name is Warren Watanabe, President of the Maui County Farm Bureau.
Thank you for this opportunity to express our views on Act 183, Important Agricultural
Lands. Maui County Farm Bureau on behalf of our farmer, farmer and ranch families
and organizations, appreciates the scheduling of this important subject on your
Committee agenda.
The Hawaii Farm Bureau Federation was very involved in the passage of Act 183 and it,
we are very clear as to the intent of the legislation. Lying at the core of Important
Agricultural Land's concept as provided in Act 183 are farmers and ranchers. This Act is
intended to promote viable and vibrant farms and ranches and not just have lands that are
designated as agriculture with no farming. Act 183 was not intended to be just another
land use law or initiative, but as an agricultural initiative that results in the long-term
dedication and use of lands in agriculture.
There have been many initiatives across the country attempting to protect and preserve
agriculture by using purchase and transfer of development rights. While these initiatives
have kept lands from development, they have not, they have not necessarily resulted in
the viability of agriculture. They have just kept open space. Hawaii is at a unique
position to shape how agriculture grows in the future. Lessons from these other areas
provide us incentive to create a program that truly provides viable farms and ranchers and
not just open space.
Here on Maui the justification is clear. We have had many of our largest vegetables
growers and some our flower, flower farmers exit the business. Many of them own their
own lands and these lands now sit vacant, ripe for other uses to take place. These
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farmers' livelihoods were at stake and the current business climate did not assure them of
a viable nest egg for retirement.
Incentive requirements for Act 183 include State, as well, as well as County programs.
We strongly urge this County to provide leadership in the State by, by demonstrating
concretely its commitment to agriculture by passing County incentives to support
important agricultural lands. These incentives are expected to ensure long-term farm and
ranch viability resulting in lands that remain in agriculture loose ... use available for
generations to come.
Thank you for this opportunity to provide our opinion on this matter. We appreciate all
that the Council and Administration have done to support Maui County Farm Bureau's
efforts to promote and advocate for agriculture in the County. We hope to continue to
work with you to increase Maui's self-sufficiency and expand, and expand its economy
with our agricultural products. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much, Mr. Watanabe.
testifier? Councilmember Johnson.

Are there any questions for the

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Good morning, Warren. And thanks again for your great
support because I know you've been following this issue right along. One of the things
that you had stated in your testimony was that several of the smaller or possibly even
larger farm operations have exited the market. Has the Maui County Farm Bureau made
any attempts to I guess poll these individuals or do survey work so that you can give us
the information as to why they've gone out of business?
MR. WATANABE: Well, I personally have gone around. You know, this is a big concern for,
for myself as president of an organization that advocates for agricultural. So, I've talked
to them personally. I've gone to the farms and talk, you know, try to get as much
information as possible. I think it's a compilation of a lot of issues. Well, for one thing,
you know, the issues at the harbor getting products off, off this island, the increased
transportation costs, your, your water issue. We're in a, we're in a drought situation right
now.
So, it's, it's all these different components that come, impact a farmer and his viability.
And I think part of it also is I think we need to strengthen our marketing capability. One
thing I think as an incentive from the County is to try to develop a central value added
processing facility. And this will help the farmers. I mean you're taking for instance the
omon growers-VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. W AT ANABE: --you know, when, when you have bad weather, you know, they, they
throwaway a lot of the crops. So, we, they need to salvage as much of the crop as
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possible, and you know, that's why, probably one, most of the reasons why they've gone
out.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I really appreciate that because any information that you can then
impart to us is really going to be very valuable. One other question along those same
lines because I realize you're farming and you don't have the time to, I guess, enter into
surveys or do a lot of leg work, and you were nice enough to go and ask these farmers
why they went out of business. But if the County were to provide financial resources so
that a survey could be sent out to all the farmers or some kind of a poll taken, would that
be something that would be a help to you if we just surveyed all farmers to find out what
their various issues are?
MR. W AT ANABE: Yeah. I think that would be very helpful and I would, I would suggest that
it go, it go through the Office of Economic Development, a survey. And I think it would
give, give again the Council and the Administration a starting point as to what the
priorities are for the farming industry. Again, there's so many issues that I think by doing
that I.. .for one thing for me I think it gives the industry some hope that, you know, there
is help from the County Administration and the County Government. And, you know, a
lot of times even in my testimony I was saying, you know, actions speaks louder than
words, you know.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. I really appreciate that, Warren. And also, too, I know you
worked very hard on the definition for agriculture and we just don't seem to be getting
too far with that. So, anyway, that is another area that I think this Committee will at least
try to focus on. Thank you very much, Warren.
MR. WATANABE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Any other questions for the testifier? Councilmember Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. Good morning, Mr. Watanabe.
Thank you for being here and for your testimony as always. I wanted to ask you and I
think Councilmember Johnson, you know, did ask you questions relating to my question.
But what do you feel is the most important intent or, and/or mandate of Act 183 that will
benefit Ag and Maui farmers and ranchers?
MR. WATANABE: Well, again, for the Hawaii Farm Bureau, we looked, we, we helped
develop this program along the way, you know, with you have Laura and Ruby here,
along with the University, State Department of Agriculture. We had stakeholders
involved. Again, it's, the premise for the Farm Bureau is that the basic strength, message
we want to get across, again, it's not a land use bill. It's a viability bill, and what, what
we're trying to say that if you make agriculture a strong environment economic sector of
the State, the lands that are used for agriculture will stay in agriculture. The landowners
will dedicate the land and, and make that commitment to keep it in ago
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And again, it will help with the, again, you know, self-sustaining, and you know, that,
that's a big issue right now within the State and even for like biofuels. You know, it all
has to be put together in one package.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. So, as far as yourself and your organization
and other farmers and ranchers, what do you think, I, I heard your explanation of, you
know, this particular Act 183 and, and how you see it working for ag ... agriculture. But
what would be the goals of your organization to implement Act 183 to its fullest benefits?
MR. W AT ANABE: Well, again, we just went, finished our, our, the last Legislative Session and
there was a whole slew of incentive packages on a State level. My understanding none
of, none of 'em passed, and you know, we really need to work on it. Again, it's assuring
I think the, the industry that we have the support. And a lot of it is because, for instance,
many farmers cannot get financial backing and that's why we had a loan guarantee thing
in, in the Leg. That didn't pass. And so, you know, I think it's, it's incumbent on the
State of Hawaii, for the State Government and the County Governments to all step up to
the plate because we keep hearing that, yeah, we want agriculture, but I mean frankly the
industry is, we don't get that support it's not going to survive. And so, you know, to me
that, again, the State has to make a decision how much is agriculture important for us.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Chair.

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Watanabe.

Thank you, Madam

CHAIR BAlSA: Any other questions for the testifier? Mr. Watanabe, I had a question. You
mentioned that you'd like us to pass some incentives. Can you share with us some of
your ideas?
MR. WATANABE: ... (chuckles) ... You see I was kind of ready for that one. Well, for one
thing, I mean, I, I know it's not just agriculture, the permitting processes, I mean most of
the things you're going to have to go to the permits so we ask that it be streamlined and
be expedited as much as possible. We had some farmers that wanted to do some things
on their land but the permitting process because it took so long the cost just, you know,
they couldn't afford it anymore.
Some other things is assuring water. That's another key component for important ag
lands is assuring reliable and affordable water. Assuring right to, the right to farm that
the lands that are, the farmers are using that, you know, that they are able to farm and
also that, you know, ordinances don't get passed that make it more difficult for them.
We, agriculture is very heavily regulated and so any other ordinances that will, you
know, kind of put a burden on the operations, you know, I think needs to be looked at.
And again, it's a balance I think of what the community needs and what the agricultural
needs are.
And basically, that agriculture should be treated as a business. It should be not thought of
as just a lifestyle. I mean many people emphasize the lifestyle but it is a business. Most
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farmers are in there to try to earn a profit, you know. And again, if they are doing that,
they will keep their lands in agriculture. It's, I mean it's like any other business
enterprise. And I think one thing that, you know, on the County level we're very
appreciative, we, we did get the Enterprise Zone and we, we tried three times at the State
Legislature. Couldn't get it passed. So, you know, and then again I think that's where
the State and County needs to, you know, really work closer together.
CHAIR BAlSA: I have another question. There seems to be some kind of a feeling among
people that maybe the younger generation is one of the reasons why farming is kind of
out of fad nowadays. Because the young generation doesn't want to do the hard, hard,
you know, back breaking labor that an older generation did. Is it something that you
think is, is a correct assumption?
MR. W AT ANABE: There is that feeling but as I think you're well aware, too, for Maui County
Farm Bureau that's why we did our Ag in the Classroom program. And I know for
Hawaii Farm Bureau, we also are trying to get it going across all the counties. And I,
actually, I just spoke to the Kauai County Farm Bureau president and she said, stated that
they started a program on Kauai. So that, that's good news.
We need to change that perception. And that's why we're trying to also partner with
MEDB on a program that thank, thankfully, you know, again the Council helped fund.
So, we are working with Jeanne Skog and to develop that program but it's going to take a
while. I think we need to emphasize that agriculture as a career is not only farming, you
know, there's research, there's ... I mean there's a whole wide range. There's culinary
arts, which we include as part of agriculture. So, you know, there's a lot of in ... different
career choices for the students and I think we need to build on that, and hopefully, we can
get State Department of Education also to do more.
CHAIR BAlSA: Well, terrific. You know that kind of leads to my last question I wanted to talk
to you about and that is you mentioned marketing. And so, my next question is do you or
are you able to market or to get sold most of the product that you can raise or is there
more opportunity for more or? I'm kind of interested in, in that.
MR. WATANABE: I would say that the potential is unlimited. And I, and again it's just
developing the marketing program. And for ag to be really sustaining, I think one of the
problems we have on Maui is, because I'm in a real specialty market right now. I used to
be in the wholesale, you know, larger, large farms, you know, selling volume to the, to
the local retailers. I think there, there needs to be a mix of that. Some, each farm is, has
their own particular marketing potential and we need to explore all of it. Internet
marketing, for instance, I, for me personally I think, you know, the Maui onion will be a
great product for internet marketing.
CHAIR BAlSA: Is that done at all?
MR. W AT ANABE: No. Not, not. ..
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CHAIR BAISA: Not yet?
MR. WATANABE: Not yet. But I'm trying to encourage them. I think, you know, and that's
the kind of things a lot of potential. I think part of it is the farmers have not grasped all
the latest technology, too, and that needs to be developed. But I think there's a lot of
potential. But we also need to develop the export market. I think for a lot of products,
for example, I used to grow cauliflower. And the, the local consumption of cauliflower I
mean you, you have two farms growing it. You flood the State's market. So, you know,
we need that export potential to get crops out of the state. And, you know, I think again
that's where County, State collaboration along with the Federal Government will advance
that.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. You bring a very knowledgeable perspective. Any
other questions? Councilmember Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Madam Chair, thank you for this opportunity again.
Mr. Watanabe, in your responses to the Chair, two questions intrigued me and I, I wonder
if you can expand on it. First of all, you said to assure the right to farm. What, what does
that mean?
MR. WATANABE: Well, Hawaii is, I mean I think most states right now do have a right to
farm and it is a state statute. But what we're saying there has been no court case yet so
the, the law hasn't been tested in court yet. And, you know, there have been instances on
the mainland where it didn't favor the farmer. What we're saying is that, you know, the
right to farm doesn't exempt a farmer from all, you know, liability. The farmer still is
responsible and he has to follow all the rules and, you know, all the good generally
accepted agricultural practices. But if he does that, what we don't want to see is again a
nuisance lawsuit, you know, those kind of issues. And that's why we're saying, you
know, if the County can help, you know, mitigate, at least mitigate those issues.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Do we have a State statute on the right to farm?
MR. WATANABE: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. My second question is since you brought it up
and I always wanted to ask this question. What is the difference when we go to shop at
the supermarket between a Maui or a Kula onion because the prices are different?
MR. W AT ANABE: Yeah, well, I mean the .. .it is quality. I mean the Maui onion usually is
very firm as opposed I mean right now you get, you get sweet onions coming say from
even from Vidalia, Walla Walla.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: You're right.
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MR. WATANABE: I mean if you compare 'em it is a firmer product. So that, you know,
basically that's more moisture. Frankly, you know, I say, you know, you getting what
you pay for.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, so, is the Maui and Kula onion the same onion?
MR. WATANABE: Yes, it is. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Well, thank you for that clarification. Thank you,
Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Any additional questions for Mr. Watanabe? If not,
Mr. Watanabe, thank you very much for coming.
MR. WATANABE: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: We have another testifier. And our next testifier will be Sylvia Cabral. Sylvia.
MS. CABRAL: Good morning.
CHAIR BAlSA: Good morning.
MS. CABRAL: When the agenda was sent out it didn't have the Act attached and I didn't look it
up so I'm not completely informed on today' s meeting. But when I saw agriculture I was
very interested because ... (pause) . .. I've been reading in the code book that a person
has to make $36,000 a year in order to have a farm dwelling. So, I have two people
working on my little farm, my little two-acre farm, and they're an elderly couple, you
know, a little disabled. But they're out there farming, okay, catchment water farming,
catchment water in Kanaio. Okay. So, I'm doing this more, more as a test case. Just to
see, okay, if I was a person with a two, two-acre farm and I wanted to build a farm
dwelling and I had to make $36,000 a year. Okay, so the couple brings me, you know, a
few bags of beans and they want to put up a fruit stand on the side of the road. You
know, they were just so happy and ready to go and then, ... (coughs) . .. excuse me, well,
what's the next crop? There's, there's no other crop next, you know.
What I'm getting at is it is absolutely impossible to make, sell a $100 a day of vegetables.
So, if this is going to become a law for Maui and you're going to require everybody that
wants to put up a cottage or a farm dwelling to sell a $100 a day of product, I just, I think
it's impossible. The other thing is I really would like to see more catchment tanks. I
don't think people should be forbidden or stopped from building because there's not
water you should allow catchment tanks. And then when the water comes, okay, they
can, you know, cross over. But I think catch ... catchment works on the Big Island. I've
lived on catchment almost my entire life. It's never been a problem except for farming.
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And then there's talk of changing some of the smaller two-acre pieces, the one- and twoacre pieces to rural. And a lot of people started panicking in Kula 200 thinking that it
wasn't going to be allowed ... grandfathered there so that their houses would all be illegal.
So those are just points that I wanted to bring to you that I hear, you know, out in the
public. That's all. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA:
Johnson?

Thank you very much.

Any questions for the testifier?

Councilmember

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Thanks very much for coming today. Are you a member of
the Farm Bureau or have you worked with the Farm Bureau at all to evaluate what crops
might be grown to I guess produce the revenue that your ...
MS. CABRAL: Well, my, you know, I've got a woman that has got more than a green thumb.
She can grow anything. But it's, it's the fact of how many people do I have to hire to, to
sell to satisfy a rule that says I have to sell $100 a day worth of product? How many
people? This lady can grow anything. That's not the problem. The problem is how
many people is it going to take to generate enough revenue? You know Maui onions take
what nine months and, and they'll probably grow there. So, I'm, I'm, I'm pretty good in
agriculture.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and the only reason I'm asking this is because there are other
people that do have two acres-MS. CABRAL: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --that have made a tremendous, you know, living basically on-MS. CABRAL: $36,000 a year?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --two acres. Probably far in excess of that because they developed a
model that was a workable and sustainable model. Alii Chang's Kula Lavender Farm
started on very small scale with very little water. So that's one of the models.
MS. CABRAL: Are they on catchment water?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I don't, I'm not sure. I really don't know but I know they have
water storage but they basically irrigate very, very little and it's very rocky soil. But
that's all that I wanted to try to determine is if you had sought other assistance to try to
develop a model so that you could qualify. And I'm not sure about the 36,000 from a
County perspective.
MS. CABRAL: I think. ..
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I think that has to do with agricultural dedication or whether you can
get certain breaks from the State. So, I, I would need to look into that ordinance. Thank
you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Any additional questions? Councilmember Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. And thank you, Ms. Cabral, is that
correct?
MS. CABRAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony. You're farming in Kanaio.
I applaud you if you're farming in Kanaio because it's a very arid place. Not much water
and not much soil. Can I ask you what kind of crops are you farming?
MS. CABRAL: The people that are working for me they're, they're growing bok choy, green
beans, bell peppers, eggplant, tomatoes. It's a very new farm. It's, you know, it's not a
year old. They haven't been there, they haven't been there for quite a year farming.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and do you market your crops or?
MS. CABRAL: They were trying to. They were trying to but they didn't have the amount
needed to, you know, to start marketing yet.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. Thank, thank you very much. Thank you,
Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Any additional questions? If not, Ms. Cabral, thank you very much for coming
today. Is there anyone else who would like to testify? If not, without objections, the
Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR BAISA: I'd now like to call a short two-minute recess while we lower the screen and
get ready for our presentation. . .. (gavel) ...

- 11 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 24, 2007

RECESS:

9:38 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:40 a.m .

CHAIR BAISA:
order.

. . (gavel). .. The meeting of the Planning Committee will come back to

ITEM NO. 41:

SUSTAINABLE AGRICULTURAL AND RURAL PLANNING (C.C. No.
05-329)

CHAIR BAISA: I would now like to call upon Laura Thielen, our State Planning Director, to
introduce our presentation today. Welcome, Laura.
MS. THIELEN: Thank you. Thank you very much. Can you folks hear me?
CHAIR BAISA: Yes, we can.
MS. THIELEN: My name is Laura Thielen. I'm the Director for the State Office of Planning.
With me today is Ruby Edwards who's the lead planner who's been working on this
project with our office and, with the Office of Planning for I think about 17 years. Many
of you may be familiar with her from the agricultural working group and other work that
she's done in the past. She put together this PowerPoint today. Ruby, can you take us to
the next slide?
CHAIR BAISA: Inci ... incidentally, Laura, just a second. I'd like to let the Members know that
we're going to do this in sections and after each, each sections we'll pause and have our
questions and discussion. This is how the planners would like us to do it. I think it will
work really well. Thank you.
MS. THIELEN: Thanks. We arranged it in these three sections. We knew that you wanted
information about Act 183 and Act 205 and then some of the work that's gone on since
then and we wanted to have a chance to have some dialogue ... (end a/tape, start IE) . ..
after each of these sections. So the first section we're going to talk about Act 183, what
the elements are in that Act, what it asked to do, and then what's the status of that work
since that Act passed two years ago, and then also Act 205. And then we'll take a break
and we can have some questions about both the statutes, as well as the, the subsequent
actions.
Then in Part II we're going to be talking about some work that's gone on about planning
for rural areas. This may be Rural District or just, you know, non-agricultural areas,
non-urban areas that what's been going on and the specific work that we've done around
the rural topic. And then again stop and have some questions. And then Part III is
actually the shortest part is what can be done at the County level now with or without
State action to move these initiatives forward.
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So, Ruby, if you can go to the next slide. I'm going to begin again starting about Act 183
and then Act 205. Act 183, the Legislature initiated a process to begin the identification
of important agricultural lands. We'll explain some more about that process but it's just
the initiation of that process. Act 205, the Legislature realized that if we do move
forward with identifying important agricultural lands, that may be a subcategory of all the
lands in the Agricultural District, and there is some question about what should happen
with other lands. Some of those lands may remain in the Agricultural District; some of
those lands may convert to the Conservation District, to the Urban District. But we also
have this district called the Rural District under the State Land Use Law and it's not
really being utilized. So, under Act 205, the Legislature asked for some work to be done
on examining the Rural District. What changes may be needed in that district in order for
it to become something that would be useful.
Okay, next slide. The first thing that Act 183 did is it laid out the criteria for what lands
may be considered important agricultural lands. How do we identify them? Many of you
have been working in this area for years. You're familiar with the ALISH classification,
the LISA classification. Many of those are soil-based classifications. Under Act 183, it
listed criteria, which should be considered when evaluating whether land should be
important agricultural lands. Soils is just one of those criteria as you can see on the list.
There's other criteria such as access to transportation, water, and other things that tried to
reflect more modern agricultural techniques then the past identification.
Go on to next slide. The designation process. The Act 183 setup two different ways that
land could be designated important agricultural land. One is you could have a voluntary
process by which a landowner would come forward, ask the Land Use Commission for a
declaratory ruling to designate their land important agricultural land. The second process
is that the counties could map important agricultural lands using those criteria in the last
slide, adopt those maps through the county council process and then three years after the
agricultural incentives are adopted bring those maps to the Land Use Commission and
ask the Commission to identify those lands as important agricultural lands.
The third thing that Act 183 did is it required the enactment of agricultural incentives
before the Land Use Commission could accept any applications for IAL and this
addresses some of the issues that the gentleman from the Farm Bureau brought up. Act
183 is not just a land use. It also is and intending to make agriculture a viable operation
in our economy. And so, there was a directive to the State Department of Agriculture to
work with a group setup under Act 183 to develop agricultural incentives to help support
agriculture as a business in Hawaii.
Okay. Next slide. I'm going to outline what Act 205 did and then I'm going to go on to
the, what efforts have been done on both Act 183 and 205 since the Acts passed. Under
Act 205, as I mentioned, the Legislature asked for an examination of the State Rural
District classification but it also prohibited golf courses in the Agricultural District and
made golf courses a permissible use in the Rural District. This is part of a larger effort to
say that the Agricultural District should be used for agricultural purposes and golf
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courses are not really commercial agricultural purposes and may be more appropriate in
either the Rural or the Urban District. Act 205 requested the counties and the Land Use
Commission Executive Officer to study the Rural District and to make a report back to
the Legislature. And then it also asked the counties to identify lands that may be
appropriate for the Rural District.
Next slide. The status of the efforts. Over the two years since Act 183 was passed, the
Department of Agriculture worked with the working group designated in that Act
including the Farm Bureau, Land Use Research Foundation, and a number of other
stakeholders to identify a variety of agricultural incentives. The groups met regularly.
They broke out into working groups. The Department of Agriculture also conducted
informational meetings around the State to try and gather public input as well.
This is a list of some of the legislative proposals that were developed by that agricultural
incentive working group. Tax incentives. I should mention that the County Planning
Directors were also on that working group and representatives of the counties because a
lot of the tax, the property tax structures are under the control of the counties. And
there's another list. I'm not going to go through that. If you have any questions, I can try
to answer them.
As I mentioned before under Act 183 no one can begin the process of going to the Land
Use Commission to identify important agricultural lands until the Legislature accepts a
package of agricultural incentives. Last session, the 2007 session, was when the
Department of Agriculture brought back that package of agricultural incentives. And
that's the first time the Legislature saw them in whole and there was a discussion in front
of the Legislature about whether those incentives were adequate to trigger the
identification of important ag lands. And the Legislature has asked people to come back
in the 2008 session to resolve some of the remaining disagreements over the incentives.
Under Act 205, a number of things have moved forward. Our office has worked with the
County Planning Directors and the Executive Officer of the Land Use Commission to
fund a Rural Planning and Best Practices Project. Where we brought in planning
directors from a variety of jurisdictions around the nation to talk about how they've
planned for rural communities, how they've encouraged agricultural development, and
what they've done to protect those lands from urban encroachment. The Land Use
Commission also utilized some of the funds that the Legislature gave it to work with the
Hawaii Rural Development Council to do a series of community meetings to talk about
the Rural District as well.
And then next slide. The County Planning Directors, the Land Use Commission
Executive Officer, and our office worked with Tom Dinell who is a Professor Emeritus
from the Department of Urban and Regional Planning to start to work on what are the
areas where we have agreements on the changes to the Rural District, what are the areas
where we still have disagreements, and then provided a report back to the Legislature.
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We did submit some legislation this past session to redefine the Rural District based
along the lines where we did have areas of agreement with the different county planning
directors. The Legislature took a look at that. They took a look at Act 183, the Ag
incentives, and what they decided to do on the rural issue is to wait until they had some
further clarification on important ag lands before moving forward with rural. So, again,
they've asked for people to come back this next session. And that concludes the
overview of Acts 183 and 205.
I would just want to remind, you know, since you have asked us to speak with you, the
County role under this is really to be identifying those important agricultural lands.
Under Act 183, it charged the counties with taking the lead for mapping those areas. I
believe under the theory that, you know, the counties are in the best position to identify
which of the lands in the Agricultural District are the most viable agricultural lands and,
and should be protected. Participating in the development of the agricultural incentives
because it's going to need a package of incentives from both the State and the County
level in order for agri-business to be able to succeed and then identifying those lands
which may be appropriate to be removed from the Agricultural District. And if it goes
into the Rural District, how should that district be redefined so it can perpetuate the rural
character on each island that each county wants to perpetuate.
So that covers Act 183 and 205. And I'd like to take a break for questions. In the next
session, I'm going to talk more about the rural planning principles and some of the
specifics that came out of that work we did under Act 205. And then in the subsequent
session what could be done at the county level to move these initiatives forward.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much, Laura. Members, questions? Member Johnson?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes, Laura, thanks very much for the overview. One of the
questions I guess I have is in working with our County Planning Director. We're now
going through the General Plan.
MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And of course, this I think is one of the tasks that we've been trying
to accomplish is the identification of those lands. One of the challenges we have is I
guess setting our urban growth boundaries. And also looking I guess, if you will, I don't
want to call it spot zoning but trying to avoid segmenting or putting perhaps rural zoning
in the middle of, of an ag area or even redesignating some of those lands into urban
classification which may be completely inappropriate if everything surrounding it is
agriculture.
MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: How do you see our, I guess, our efforts or your efforts in
combination with our Planning Department moving forward to address some of those
challenges?
MS. THIELEN: Some of the things that we're going to talk about in the next section are ways
that counties can plan for that type of development that's not ag and not urban. It's pretty
forward thinking for Hawaii. And I think the time is right for us to be talking about it.
We've been focused a lot on our urban areas. We've been talking a lot about agriculture
and important agricultural lands. There's been less attention paid on, well, what happens
when those two are defined? So, now is the time that we should be focusing on that.
How can we plan for that? What needs to be in place at both the State level and the
County level to make sure that those plans become a reality? And it's going to take more
than just the plans. And I'll get into that in more detail in the next section. It's going to
require a complete set of tools at the County level that are specific to these rural areas.
Different from what you use in urban areas. And some of these tools could be used in the
agricultural areas as well. And so, I'll get into a list of those. But we are going to have to
be prepared for tho ... to, to make sure that picture of what you want to see in place in
Maui for those communities is ... actually becomes a reality over the years.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And, and I look forward to that. One, one of the other
challenges that we have I guess is many of the homes that are being built on agricultural
land currently are what we lovingly refer to as "mac-mansions". And that of course has
caused tremendous escalation in the land value because, you know, very few people who
are non-millionaires can really go into these areas. So, how, from, from your perspective,
are you addressing this also at the State level and is this part of the challenge that we all
have in-MS. THIELEN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --preserving our ag lands without having to be a millionaire?
MS. THIELEN: Yes, and yes. Again, going back to the gentleman from the Farm Bureau. He
is right in that we need to find ways to make agri-business viable in Hawaii but I would
say that Act 183 is also a land use law because one of the biggest inputs in agriculture is
the land. And if agricultural land continues to be priced with the highest and best use
being residential housing, farmers will never be able to buy it. So, you need to have
some type of different valuation of those lands and that requires land use, which is very
clear that those lands are for agricultural purposes and that's what IAL is an attempt to
do.
The Administration also submitted some legislation this last session along with the ag
incentives that tightened up the definition of agricultural use and farm dwellings to make,
in an attempt to make it clearer that these types of, of. .. these homes are accessory to
agricultural use. That legislation did not pass but we'll be going back again next session
in an attempt to do so.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Currently, under HRS 205, my understanding is that you need to, in
order to have an agricultural designation, you need to be doing farming on a minimum of
51 percent of your land with the primary dwelling on your residence in support of the
agriculture activity that's going on and any secondary dwelling should be for farm
workers, or as you say, some accessory use. Currently, from my understanding the
County ofMaui was taken to court over this issue of only requiring farming to actually be
in place when the second dwelling was being built. And there was no evidence even that
the second dwelling had to house farm workers. So, the challenge came and I attended
some of the hearings toward the end and it was people in Kauaula Valley that basically
sought some kind of resolution to non-agricultural uses taking place on ag land.
What would you say if we were to at the county level require that farming actually be
taking place and a viable farm plan be reviewed either by the Farm Bureau or some other
entity prior to even allowing the first dwelling to be built?
MS. THIELEN: I would say that is certainly within the County's authority to do. The State law
when you talk about the 51 percent I think you may be talking about a County policy and
not the State law. The State law does require that residences in the Agricultural District
be farm dwellings accessory to the agricultural use or that the residents in them are
earning income from the agricultural use. The counties can further define that and within
their zoning authority they can place further requirements or tests in order to be able to
build residences in Agricultural District under your zoning authority.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. I, I, I'm citing and I'll have to look at it again but this is
primarily my understanding of HRS 205 as it, not as it was proposed, but as it exists
currently because we're just looking at trying to have compliance with State law.
MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON:
enforcement.

And that's where we seem to have our challenge

IS

on the

MS. THIELEN: And it's clearly been a challenge across the State to interpret that. And I think
there's a lot of anecdotal issues that come up where people struggle with it and so it's not
been resolved at the State level. What do you do with somebody who has been farming
and then they retire and they continue to live on that land? Do you tell them they're no
longer a, you know, legal use and they have to go? So, it's questions like that continually
come up. I think it's, it's very difficult. And one of the reasons the Legislature hasn't
resolved them is it's, it's harder at the State level to come up with an answer that fits on
each of the islands. And in some cases at the County level, you have a greater ability,
well, at least on the other counties 'cause they're a single island. You guys have more
challenges 'cause you're multiple islands. But to try and craft a solution that fits better
within your own jurisdiction about what would be the standards that have to be met in
order to do residential uses.
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Another issue that has, in my OpInIOn, prevented us from moving forward is the
Agricultural District is about close to 50 percent of the land in the State. And it's
something like 48, 49 percent, and no, excuse me, I have to take that back, 5 percent is in
the Urban District, you know, something like 40-odd percent is in the Conservation, you
know, high percentage in the Agricultural District. We do need to move forward on
identifying important agricultural lands and we do need to address what happens with
those lands in the Ag District that are not IAL. Some of them will remain in the Ag
District as agricultural but you still have growth pressures. And one of the reasons why
there's so much pressure on your ag land is, you know, people are going to go
somewhere and that's where we're saying we need to take a look at that Rural District.
And instead of having the one-acre, five-acre, you know, whatever you want to call them,
residences on the ag land maybe be taking a look at crafting where would you want your
growth that occurs outside your urban boundaries what do you want it to look like? What
shape should it take?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah.
assistance. Thank you.

And thank you very much.

I really appreciate your

CHAIR BAlSA: Member Molina, followed by Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Ms. Thielen.
MS. THIELEN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Members, I make reference to Page 5 of the slide presentation.
My two questions for I guess more clarity on, relate to Act 183, the two bullet points.
One that has to do with agriculture-business investment tax credit for important ag lands,
as well as the bullet point relating to tax relief for real property taxes paid by important
ag land landowners or lessees. Could I get more specifics on those two bullet points, and
if you could give us, share what was I guess discussed in terms of how it relates?
Especially to the second bullet point, real property taxes, which is basically administered
by the counties and here is State legislation and how all of that mixes in and what's the
impacts.
MS. THIELEN: I'm sorry, which slide are you on?
CHAIR BAlSA: On Page 5.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Page 5.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes. I have Page 5 of the handout we were given so that
would be ...
CHAIR BAlSA: We have a number.
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MS. THIELEN: Page 9. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
MS. THIELEN: I took part in some of the discussion on the ag incentives not all of them. I am
sure the Farm Bureau could weigh in on this one as well. My understanding is they
talked about, they had a discussion about tax credits on the State level. What type of tax
credits could be awarded to agri-business or what type of waivers or subsidies. There
was discussion about the real property tax but a recognition that this is something that's
under the county jurisdiction. It's not something that could be enacted by State
Legislation. And my understanding is that authority was given to the counties, I'm
looking at Ruby for verification, under a Constitutional Amendment. So, I don't think
the State Legislature could change the authority of the counties to govern their real
property tax absent a Constitutional Amendment. I've not heard anybody talking about
that. But it was an encouragement, you know, because the County Planning Directors
were at the table with the ag working group or the ag incentives group to talk about are
there real property tax, a differential tax structure-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MS. THIELEN: --for ag that could be put in place that would help ag business survive. And
again that kind of goes back to the question raised earlier you may have a test that must
be met in order to be eligible for these type of incentives. And there was a lot of
discussion about what kinds of tests would be in place for the ag incentives at the State
level.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Chair Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair. .. Madam Chair, thank you. Director Thielen, I
appreciate your presentation so far and all I can tell you is you have restoked my
frustration with the State for 30 years. Because I was one of the few with 101 other
delegates at the '78 Constitutional Convention that put this language in. And here we are
30 years with nothing being done. So, talk about my frustrations. I would like to know
in, in, in, and again, you know, I have my own biases about lack of leadership and
commitment from the State level through various administrations and various
legislatures. What are we to do with the role of the State plan and the functional plan on
agriculture? Are we to ignore it? Is it meaningless paperwork and we should just dump
it in a wastebasket? What is the role of State plan and ag functional plan?
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MS. THIELEN: No. It should not be ignored. Part of the purpose of the group that Senator
Kokubun setup on that Sustainability 2050 was to take a look at that State plan and to
look at how that would need to be updated for 2050. Some recommendations are going
forward to that task force. Your Planning Director is a member of it. David Goode is a
member appointed by the Governor. I'm a member as well. I don't think at this point
they're going to be updating the State plan but instead trying to layout certain indicators
and goals for the State and agriculture is one of them. Land use is one of them.
I share your frustration and thank you for putting that provision into the ConCon in 1973
and I would like to see it move forward. I think it's going to be very important for the
counties to weigh in to the Legislature this next session and to indicate if you are
supportive of moving forward. The message that we were giving to the Legislatures last
session is it doesn't matter if the package of ag incentives is imperfect, you can always
amend them. You can always supplement them. Agricultural incentives will always
change over time because agriculture is a business that will change over time. The
demands will change over time. The technology will change over time. Do not wait for
perfection. Adopt them and let us move forward with the identification of important ag
lands. And the counties should be at the Legislature providing that message if it's
something that you folks support. They do pay attention to the counties.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I, I believe we will continue to participate more actively,
Director. But if by ratification of a Constitutional Amendment, which is what the people
chose in 1978 to ratify that by itself should be enough standing and advocation of a
change. Because already in the '70s we knew we had to change our outlook and
direction for agriculture.
MS. THIELEN: Agreed. In Section III today we'll talk about how the counties can also move
forward without waiting on the State Legislature.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Are we correct in understanding the Legislature provided the
county some funds to do what has been tasked to us on behalf of the Legislature?
MS. THIELEN: There were two appropriations. One in Act 183 which provided some modest
amount of funds to the Executive Officer of the Land Use Commission to work with the
counties on that identification of IAL. There was some discussion with the, the group
with the planning directors. The amount of monies was, was very, it was under $100,000
and at the ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Per county or just the whole,-MS. THIELEN: Total.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --the whole amount?
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MS. THIELEN: Total. So, what was decided was that Kauai didn't have certain data digitized
for mapping. And so, a contract was put out I believe to assist them with digitizing that
information so that they would be able to move forward at, at the same pace as the other
counties. There was I think a $50,000 appropriation under Act 205 for doing the, the
report as well as the community outreach. And that again was done through the
Executive Officer of the Land Use Commission who used that on the contract with the
Hawaii Rural Development Council for the community outreach discussions. Our work
and the workshops we did was, we used funding under NOAA for our Coastal Zone
Management Program.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, that's, and thank you for sharing that, Director. That I
would say continues to flame my frustration and disappointment because we hear it
through legislation in the rhetoric how important it is. Yet on the other hand, they refuse
to appropriate sufficient funds to accomplish the task. So what are we to think? Is this
just a exercise that we're going to go through to appease the, the community, the public,
the residents of this State? That we hope you believe we're serious about ag, but you
know, we won't put the funds so that you can do the work that is required to take this
seriously?
MS. THIELEN: Well, again, Councilman, I can't answer that question but I think it would be a
good one to pose to the Legislature. The Administration is supporting getting the
adoption of ag incentives moving forward with the identification of important agricultural
lands and shifting us away from a land based economy to something new that we can
sustain us over time.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Did the Administration support the tax credit proposal for the
real property taxes on true agricultural activities?
MS. THIELEN: Again, I am not familiar with the final package that went through under the ag
incentives but I can get that information to you from the Department of Agriculture
which led that effort. I believe there were tax incentives included in that package.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Because this Council, this Committee is part of the
overall Council that we, and during Budget we did discuss how we would be considering,
and we did make some considerations of real property tax rates to the benefit of
agricultural interests, our farmers,-MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --because of this proposal that was moving and I think made
it to conference on, on the tax credit issue. And our disappointment again in their
inability to move it forward had us revert back then to basically what it generally has
been for the past few years under real property taxation. So, we've been watching.
We've been participating and we get our frustrations by lack of forward progress, I would
say, if anything else.
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MS. THIELEN: I understand the Big Island has enacted a tax structure that has a differential for
agriculture. I'm not familiar with it but that's something that you may want to ask your
Tax Department to take a look at. One message I would like to leave you with today,
Councilman, is in addition to participating in the next legislative session, the counties
have the authority to put much of this into place regardless of what the Legislature does.
The counties have the authority under your zoning, under your tax structure, under your
general authorities to implement and move forward with much of this. And again, I share
your frustration. I think we need to get those incentives adopted. We need to move
forward on this. We've talked about it long enough. But I think we should also figure
out how we can move forward in the absence of legislative action as well.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
comment.

Thank you very much.

And, Chairman, just one last

CHAIR BAlSA: Sure .... (end a/tape, start 2A) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I appreciate that, Director Thielen, because what you have
just to me verified for, for myself and maybe my colleagues is that the future of
agriculture in the State will be dictated by the counties not by the State. Because if we're
going to continue to wait maybe it will be the next 30 years before we see something
happen at the State level. So, I would agree that the counties will need to take the lead in
the State to move agriculture forward because it's not going to happen if we keep waiting
the way the Legislature continues to procrastinate. And now, we have three lists that we
got to deal with - ALISH, LISA, and IAL.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know talk about confusion-MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --and their inability to define sustainability whatever that's
going to mean after they get through with their attorneys. But I appreciate your
comments this morning, Director. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. It sounds like alphabet soup to me. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. And thank you, Ms. Thielen, for
your presentation this morning. Once the lands have been identified as important
agricultural lands, I have a three-part question and in your responses would you consider
the crops that are traditionally farmed by Hawaiians such as kalo, the taro; or the leko, the
watercress; or the uala, the sweet potatoes. What protections would these lands have
when identified as important agricultural lands?
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MS. THIELEN: Okay. That was two.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's the first question.
MS. THIELEN: Oh, that's the first. Okay. That was a two-part first question.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, you, you ...
MS. THIELEN: So, we're getting up to four now. If you look under the criteria, which is in
slide four-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. We don't have ...
MS. THIELEN: --that Act 183 in ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, we don't have number of the slides.
MS. THIELEN: Oh, you don't have ... okay.
Planning--

It's under Opportunity for Ag and Rural

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. THIELEN: --2005, Act 183, Important Ag Lands-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. THIELEN: --defines criteria for identification and designation ofIAL.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. THIELEN: The fourth bullet down, lands associated with Native Hawaiian agriculture such
as taro or unique agricultural crops and uses such as coffee, vineyards, aquaculture, and
energy production. So, Act 183 recognizes taro and historic crops may be considered or
lands where they've cultivated may be considered for IAL. The second part of that
question is what happens, what's the protection. Under that Constitutional Amendment
that your Council Member was instrumental in getting-CHAIR BAlSA: There it is.
MS. THIELEN: --passed, lands cannot be reclassified out of IAL unless you have a two-thirds
vote of the Land Use Commission and there also is a requirement on the County zone
changes, which slips my mind right now, and I told Ruby not to include that slide because
I didn't think we'd need it.
MS. EDWARDS: Super majority.
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MS. THIELEN: Okay. It requires the super majority of the County Council to rezone it out of
IAL.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. My second question is what, if any, are the
restrictions once land has been identified as important agricultural lands?
MS. THIELEN: My recollection of Act 183 is it didn't go so far as to define the permissible
uses on IAL. People were ... it was a compromised legislation to get that passed. I don't
think there was agreement on what would happen once the land goes into that category.
So, the Legislature is going to have to take further action to define that and I believe that
may be some of the sub-issues behind this argument over are the, is the incentive package
sufficient to start the trigger because there's still a lot of unanswered questions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And the third part is what if any conflicts will exist between
State and home rule for counties land use authorities?
MS. THIELEN: I think Act 183 recognizes the county role as the primary land use planner
within their jurisdiction and that's why you folks are tasked with the job of mapping the
important agricultural lands.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And my final question is on our colored stapled
copy on Page 6 under Re ... Redefinition of Rural District, which is for us on the bottom
half of the page, and the bullet would be, Elimination of special permits for Rural
District. What special permits are you referring to in this instance?
MS. THIELEN: Hang on. I just have different page numbers than you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That will be ...
MS. THIELEN: This is the Rural District reform bill?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It will be 12 for you.
MS. THIELEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: For us Page 6.
MS. THIELEN: Right. Right in the package that we submitted to the Legislature to redefine the
Rural District, we redefined the permissible uses in rural and the density. And then said
because those definitions encompass that broader vision for rural, you would no longer
have special permits. Because the counties would have the flexibility to zone for
differences within rural and wouldn't need a special permit. I'll get into some more
specifics on that in the next section on planning for rural areas.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Government?

And, and that would be special permits under State

MS. THIELEN: Correct. Under the State district on, for the State Land Use Commission-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MS. THIELEN: --or the I guess at the county level as well. This proposal did not pass. So, it's,
it's not moved forward but we can talk more about special permits, you know, after we
talk about what you may want to redefine the Rural District to be. But if the Rural
District under State law were changed to permit this broader rural uses ranging from a
rural town to open space, then you would not need special permits because you would
have that variety, you know, it would permitted under the State Law.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Thielen. Mahalo, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Any further questions? If not, Ms. Thielen, I think we can move on.
MS. THIELEN: Okay.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you.
MS. THIELEN: So this section I want to talk about the work that we had done under Act 205 to
take a look at the Rural District. Part of what I'm going to talk about right now it just
deals with how do you plan for areas that are not urban. They mayor may not be in
active agriculture but they're not your primary commercial agricultural lands. So, it's not
rural with a capital "R". This is rural with a small "r". It may be in the State Rural
District. It may be in the Ag District. City and County of Honolulu puts it in the Urban
District and zones it Country but under your County plans you may refer to it as Rural.
So, what you see up here is probably a very familiar picture. It's the pattern of residential
subdivisions in our, our current Agricultural District. Act 205, in the next slide, Ruby,
gives us a chance to rethink what could these areas be. The slide on the left is an
example of a landscape that you may have where you've got working agricultural lands,
you've got a small town, you've got some open space, you've got some natural resource
areas. The slide on the right where we have minimum lot sizes of one acre in the Rural
District, minimum lot sizes of a half acre, I'm sorry, half acre in the Rural District, one
acre in the Ag District. You folks have your sliding scale zoning. But as growth occurs
over time what you see is those working landscapes fill up with these minimum lot,
residential lots.
Next slide. The slide on the left here illustrates how, how growth patterns can look
different if you have different tools in place. And just the next one, Ruby. What you can
see here is a comparison. The slide on the right is what our current system produces with
the focus on a minimum lot size. And the slide on the left is that filled in town. The
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interesting thing to me about both these slides is you have the exact same density. The
same number of homes but in the slide on the right you've preserved your working
landscape, your natural areas, your open space.
Okay. We're going to go on to the ... so what we're looking for, the first thing is we see
in Hawaii that we have a system-wide need that recognizes that rural is more than a half
acre residential lots, golf courses, and some small agricultural operations, and that this
Rural District really should have a permanency to it. It's not just a stepping stone to an
Urban District. So what would that be? Your broader definition for your rural landscape,
and this is based on the outreach that we did on our rural project, the outreach that the
Land Use Commission and Hawaii Rural Council, Development Council did when we
went around the State and we polled people. And we said what is rural to you? And we
would flash up pictures and say is this rural, is this not rural, why, what is it? And this is
how people defined rural in Hawaii.
First is rural would include a mixed-use walkable rural center. Human scale. You can
walk around it. You've got some commercial; you've got some residential mixed in. It's
your rural towns. Second, rural does include residential uses but rural residential uses
look different from urban. It's much lower density. Third, your rural areas include
agriculture and working lands. People in Hawaii very much would like to see this
working landscape be perpetuated. Fourth, rural areas include streams, roads, scenic
areas, trails. These are called rural corridors in planning lexicon. In Hawaii, your rural
areas are going to include archeological, historic, and cultural resources. And then lastly,
your rural areas include natural areas and open space.
Now, compare this to our current State Law, which defines the Rural District as half-acre
subdivisions, golf courses, and small agricultural uses. A rural town is not permitted in
our State Rural District. Commercial uses are not permitted in the State Rural District.
It's not clear about, you know, open space, natural areas or this historic or, or
archeological uses. So, the System-wide Need II after you define, you know, Rural
District differently so that it includes this broader uses, how do you plan and manage
rural areas so that they're different from urban areas? Again, they're not that stepping
stone.
We've included in your slide handout a bound folder, which includes Rural Planning
Principles. And again these were developed by bringing these consultants in from rural
communities throughout the United States who have successfully planned for rural areas,
examined rural communities that have been successful in planning, and picked out what
are the elements that they used. And then also what is the preferences for people in
Hawaii and then how would you adapt those mainland ideas to work in Hawaii. So,
you'll see that there are 11 planning principles included in that workbook that we've
provided to you. And I can, you know, provide more information if you'd like.
A System-wide Need III is in addition to your plans you are going to need specific tools
to help those plans become a reality because the plans themselves are not going to be
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sufficient. And I want to flip to the next couple slides that are going to take you back to
that illustration to explain, you know, how these tools are going to be serving different
purposes. So, one, you don't have one magic bullet tool. But we talked about how do
you take that rural town and make sure that your growth happens as in fill growth. You
may have, you know, you want to keep that walkable community. You want to keep that
scale. You don't want to just build this up into an urban environment. So, you may have
something like a village center zoning. You may say that within this area that's where
we're going to be providing services. Curbside trash pickup, you know, other things. If
you go outside this area, you're outside of our service boundary and so the services are
going to be different. So, you're encouraging people to, you know, if you live in this
community this is what the County can afford to provide you. If you choose to live
outside, you're not going to get those types of services. And you may have design
guidelines so that buildings that do go into that area fit a certain character or a look.
You're going to need a different set of tools to maintain your working landscapes.
Again, this goes back to the testimony earlier from the Farm Bureau. The last bullet
you'll see that you're going to need agricultural economic development programs so that
those lands are not just open lands but they're also agricultural lands. You may have
conservation subdivisions so that if there is residential use that goes in there it has to
respect that pattern where the open lands need to be the natural resource areas. You may
have transfer development rights to help support farmers to be able to keep farming and
they can sell development rights so that that rural town or an urban center can, you know,
get some extra development rights and then the farmer can have some funding to support
their ongoing operations.
And then the third set of tools that you may need for your watershed natural resources,
cultural resources, again, your transfer of development rights, your watershed resource
management plans, your buffers. And so, this may, you know, again, this is a very
sophisticated type of planning that requires multiple tools that mayor may not be in place
within all four of our counties in Hawaii.
Next slide. What are the lessons that we learned in doing these workshops talking with
people around Hawaii and around the nation about how you successfully plan for rural
areas? The first is you can't use urban tools in rural areas. And I think many of us have
seen that in subdivisions that have gone into the Agricultural District where they have
curbs, gutters, you know, sidewalks, the street lighting. It looks like a suburban
subdivision. And so, you're going to need tools for subdivisions for agricultural areas,
for rural areas in order to preserve a type of character. And so, you're going to need to
define that.
The second lesson was that your plans and your zoning are not sufficient for long term
protection. We saw this in Montgomery County, Maryland, which is a county that
borders Washington, D.C.
They planned for agricultural preservation and the
encroachment from D.C. kept coming in. They zoned for agricultural preservation and
the encroachment from D.C. kept coming in. They started a very aggressive transfer of
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development rights, purchase of development rights, agricultural economic development
program, you know, a number of things. And they kept it up year after year after year
and they have successfully preserved 63,000 acres out of the 90,000 that they had
targeted because they had a variety of tools in addition to their plan and their zone. This
is not to say planning and zoning is inadequate. They are very, very important to the
overall picture. They are the overall policy guidance and the, and the public guidance.
But what it's saying is by themselves they're going to be insufficient.
Separate plans for agricultural and rural resources. Part of that again is because you want
agricultural business to be successful. You're going to need interconnected plans as we
saw from those three pictures earlier with the red on them. You're going to want an
overlay for your natural resources, your agricultural resources, cultural resources, and
then the others that we talked about the multi-year effort and multiple strategies. We've
provided a list of the jurisdictions that we worked with on this where they've been
successful in planning and maintaining and preserving rural and agricultural operations
over time. And much of that information is included in the handout that we gave you and
then we're also working on a subsequent, much more detailed guidebook, which is going
to have some model codes, ordinances that's getting close to publication right now. We
have to go through some final edits before we can put that out. But it will be a lot more
detailed material about, you know, examples that have worked in other areas that we can
adapt for Hawaii.
So that is a quick run down of the planning for rural areas. So, again, I'm happy to take
any questions that you may have.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. If you could put the lights up, please. And, Members,
questions? Chair Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Director Thielen, thank you for this Part II information you
share with us. You've given us a lot of recommendations to consider. One of the things
that I was hoping maybe you could share with us, and maybe those successful counties
like Skagit County in Washington have, I would assume that the County as well as the
State will need to make bureaucracy adjustments to do the implementation. So, do you
have any comments you can share with us whether that means that for Maui County the
Planning Department would be recommending to have a specific component to deal with
just this agricultural/rural zoning or land use programs? So that it takes into account, you
know, we have this thing called Country Town Business guidelines. So, we have design
guidelines and standards in place through ordinances.
MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We have basically most of the County is under USDA
considered rural. So, we have funding resources. But to accomplish it has there been
recommendations on how government bureaucracy would need to be adjusted either by
structure or by responsibility of assignments?
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MS. THIELEN: I, well, I'm not familiar with how your Planning Department is organized or
how they do their assignments so I can't speak to that. I can tell you that in Skagit
County and the other counties in Washington when they started doing a lot of this work it
was under a State mandate Growth Management Act that had passed. And a lot of the
counties had to really professionalize the work they were doing. Skagit is a, is a pretty
outlying county. It's in the Olympic Peninsula. And it was a relatively small planning
department that was much more of building permit type of department. And so, they had
to step up to the plate and, and start to do a lot more sophisticated planning then they had
in the past and start working towards adopting some of these tools.
They ended up hiring more people to be able to do this. A lot of the planning
departments did in Washington is my understanding. After they were successful in
getting these things implemented and, and stepped up, I think the planning departments, a
lot of the funding that came with the Growth Management Act kind of died out. And so
they're smaller then they were in the, in the heyday. But it did require building a lot of
new things within the planning department. Policies, planning capability, the plans
themselves, working with their legislatures to enact, you know, craft ordinances,
administrative rule making. So, it's a big effort.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Do you see your office making structural adjustments to
achieve the goals and objectives?
MS. THIELEN: What we were, we've been doing ... I came on board right after, when Act 183
and 205 were passing. And I realized that under Act 205 it was asking a lot to reexamine
the Rural District. This is a district where maybe half a percent of our land is in the rural
district, and it's exclusively as best I can tell half-acre subdivisions. So that's why we
went to ... our Coastal Zone Management program went to NOAA and asked for
permission to use some funds to help supplement this effort by doing some research.
And so, we pulled together a team of the County Planning Directors, the Executive
Officer of the Land Use Commission and said now that we have this funding what are
some of the questions we need answered. And so, together we then went and put out a
contract for the consultants to come in.
We followed that up now with working on the guidebook to be able to bring some
technical support to the counties in the form of model codes, other things that they can
take a look at and work on adapting. And we are, you know, willing and eager to
continue to work with the counties in this technical support role.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
structural or, or adjustments?

But you don't see your office itself making any

MS. THIELEN: I guess I'm not real clear. I mean if you could give me an example of what
you're thinking of that might help.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, you know, you know, when, for us with the, from
privacy, of course you have your structure of reporting,-MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --who does what and who is responsible, how you're going to
achieve your goals and objectives. Is there going to be an effort under your office to have
a dedicated staff person or resources available that will have primary focus on
implementing or achieving the goals that will come out for the rural and agricultural
classifications? Or is, you know, you're going to just have to deal with it since you have
no additional financial resource or support, you have no additional space to grow your
staff, you have no, you know, whatever challenges, you know, we all face jointly.
MS. THIELEN: We have done, I don't know whether you call this a structural change, but we
have written in the technical support that we will do into our Coastal Zone Management
grant application and we've told NOAA that we would like to continue this work so that
we would have some dedicated funds. We have people within our Planning Division,
within our office of which Ruby is one where we are continuing to work with the
counties and have done so over the past two years. From the State level, we will also
continue to dedicate our planners towards the legislative work that we're doing and
talking with the Legislators and, and working with the Administration to develop
proposals at the State level.
Because of the home rule issues, I don't feel it's appropriate for our office to say this is
what you're going to get to the counties. And instead we've been operating under what is
it, counties, that you want in this area? And if we can see that the counties are asking us
for things and we can share that with NOAA it's going to be easier for us to be able to
bring those additional resources to the table and to help tap into them. We've sought
some grants to supplement on the economic development side for rural communities.
And so, we're, we're happy to do that. We would like to do that but we need to have the
counties also be asking us for it because it's one thing that our Federal partners and, and
the State Legislators frankly want to know. Is this just something you're pulling out of a
hat that you're doing or is this something that your, this is a true partnership with the
counties?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, one more question, please, Chair?
CHAIR BAlSA: Sure. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. So, let's take it to the next step. How is
this working or this work in process have any impact on what is before the Land Use
Commission currently or do they go same old, same old as is because until it changes we
go on the premise we just deal with what we have already in place?
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MS. THIELEN: That's a good question. We represent the State in front of the Land Use
Commission, our office does, and what we have been saying to the Commission is one of
the primary things we need to take a look at is what is the county plan for this area in
which we're reviewing the application. When we were talking with the planning
directors and others under Act 205, what came up time and again is everybody is in a
very reactive mode in front of the plan ... the Land Use Commission. And we would like
to get back to the point where we can bring regional plans in front of the Land Use
Commission and ask them to amend the State Land Use classification to match those
plans.
One of the proposals we put in front of the Legislature, actually, for the past two years, is
to have the Land Use Commission go back to its original form so that when the Office of
Planning brings in a boundary review or a county brings in an adopted county plan, the
Commission would operate like, like you do when you adopt the plans, like in a
quasi-legislative fashion. Right now, it would have to be done parcel-by-parcel contested
case hearing.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. THIELEN: And what happened in Kona, many years ago, the County brought forward a
regional petition to urbanize certain in fill like fingers of the Ag District that were still
sticking down in Kona 'cause the County said we want to drive growth into Central Kona
and, and prohibit it, you know, outside of these areas but we want to make it easier to
happen in Kona. That had to go into a contested case lot-by-lot hearing. Attorneys
coming in and it just quickly got out of control where the County couldn't afford to do it
and they had to drop it.
There is very stiff resistance to removing the contested case hearing at the Land Use
Commission level. Now, we have tried talking with the Legislators and to say that the
exception would only be when you have the State or the County Planning Department
bringing in a regional boundary review based upon an approved county plan. So, it's
gone through public hearing at the county level. It's gone through the planning
commission at the county level. It's gone through the county council at the county level.
And we still, we, we have not been able to get that passed. I think that's a very important
piece for you guys to be able to see your plans implemented is to have that State
classification match your final adopted plans. But it's something that a lot of people have
a great deal of discomfort to see the Land Use Commission go back to a contested case
process.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just so we're, we're clear. Are you able to tell us who this
group that has the heartburn? Is it the big landowners? Is it the Hawaii Bar Association
and all the attorneys that represent landowners? Who, who has the heartburn?
MS. THIELEN: I think a lot of people in the environmental community have fought very hard
and want to keep a contested case hearing process. And I think a lot of the large
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landowners probably had some concerns about it as well. Change is difficult for a lot of
people in Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right. We understand that very well, Director.
MS. THIELEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But I would say the ... since we already have a judicial
decision on conformity whether it be with the land use classification, community plan
and zoning, should there not be conformity between all three, nothing happens with the
land anyway so for someone that would like to do something-MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --it's going to be almost, I wouldn't say impossible, highly
improbable that it will ever happen.
MS. THIELEN: Well, you're ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, my last question then, Director, and I appreciate the
Committee in their indulgence of their, their time, is has there been a request or a
consideration to increase the size that the counties are allowed to review reclassification
which is currently 15 acres? Has there been discussions or I guess someone asking, well,
why, why don't we see if the counties would take 150 acres and less then instead of 15
acres?
MS. THIELEN: I have not heard that raised in any of the discussions that we've had under the
past two years. The things that I have heard raised at the county level are let us bring our
maps to the Commission and get them adopted without conditions, you know, with a, in a
legislative fashion. And I have heard a couple people raise the idea that give the counties
exclusive jurisdiction over the Rural, as well as the Urban District, and give the State
exclusive jurisdiction over the Ag and the Conservation District. Now, these are just
things that have been thrown out in the conversations that I've heard inside and outside
the Legislature.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I, I thank you for sharing that. I think that has merit for
at least further discussion. But I think one thing we shouldn't eliminate is increasing the
size of the request for reclassification and maybe that is something that your office can
think about. Because for me that would be one way also, another tool that the County
can exercise with the acreage increased on what we can accept as under our
consideration. And again there's no magic with the 150. I just threw that out as a
ten-fold increase over what currently is as again no base, I have no basis of that 150.
MS. THIELEN: On your other point about what's, how the Land Use Commission reviews this
stuff, one thing I would like to encourage you folks .. .(end of tape, start 2B) . .. your
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County plans currently, I understand that you're, you're going through the update process
so that the General Plan will have maps attached to it. It is a little bit more difficult when
we have petitions for Maui without the maps because we can't show that regional picture
and we have to go back to the, the text and some things. So, I'm very happy to hear that
your updates are, are going to have the maps. And I understand that your Planning
Department has done some very excellent work on the GIS System in the past several
years. So, we're looking forward to that. It will be more helpful.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Director.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Members, additional questions? Member Johnson? And
following Member Johnson, I'd like us to take a break at about ten minutes to eleven and
then return at eleven to complete this morning's presentation.
MS. THIELEN: And the last section is short.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Director Thielen, too. I've, I've had the
benefit of participating with American Farmland Trust in some of their forums and
discussions really around rural. And at one of the focus groups that I attended, I brought
up what our current regulation was and they asked well what are the size of your rural
lots and I said well half acre and they laughed. Because mostly rural in I guess other
terms or in other jurisdictions, rural would never be half acre. That is closer to urban by
most views. Have you worked with American Farmland Trust on a lot of these
challenges? Because I realize we're limited by land mass here, therefore, some of our
standards would not be workable on the mainland, and the mainland standards that you're
talking about applying here may not be workable here. So, have you had an opportunity
to visit with them, and particularly in their, their, I guess, their rural planning?
MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh. I did meet Bob Wagner. He came into town and, and Ruby helped set
that up and I know that she's been working with them for a significant period of time.
You're right - in most rural communities on the mainland the density is different. I think
it's very important that we move away from the minimum lot size. When you saw those
pictures earlier, people are talking about rural communities being something from a small
town to something that's very low density or even open space and resource areas.
There are ways to manage that where you can have a rural town center with a certain
density and you can have outlying areas which have a density threshold so that you can
cluster or you can move it around to, you know, around the resources so it doesn't have
to be plopped down in the middle of a lot or something. So, we are trying to work with
these model ordinances in the guidebooks to find things that can be adapted for Hawaii
despite the fact that we're an island, and you know, we have a more finite area.
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One thing to keep in mind is the mainland jurisdictions they do have a lot of land but
each county, you know, is a finite area and they're writing ordinances for the land within
their boundary so they can push growth out farther. You know, we can't because it goes
out into the ocean but it's still somewhat similar that they're smaller land masses.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I know this is a challenge because previous
Councils have tried to work on our rural zoning. That is one of the challenges that we're
facing and I'm hoping that this, this time we'll be able to complete that particular task.
But one of the other challenges that we have, and, and I think while it involves some
agricultural land designation, what many of the local old time families they're not really
engaged in farming. They want to have a fall ... a small family subdivision. So, it's more
to me fitting within a rural classification. But we've basically tried to avoid what we call
spot zoning. So, you have all this ag land and then you have all these little tiny rural
pukas that, you know, have a greater density. Has the, I guess, the State from the
legislative perspective or even from your perspective, have you taken a look at some of
the, you want to call it family farm subdivision, but they're really not farming and they
don't want to farm, have you taken a look at this issue and then addressed it within the
context of your rural planning?
MS. THIELEN: We haven't addressed It III the context of rural other than, you know,
... (sigh) ... rural should not be a default where you've got people farming and then
they retire and then they subdivide, and then all, okay, we're going to change that from
Ag to Rural because they're an old time kamaaina family. Because then you end up with
rural becoming a spot zone.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. THIELEN: Our recommendation is that you plan where you want rural areas to be, similar
to planning for your IAL. The Department of Agriculture is advocating that when you do
designate IAL that becomes your commercial agricultural operations. It's not that
lifestyle. It's an agricultural business operations. And that, that again it's, you know, it
shouldn't be eroded over time because people end up retiring and wanting to leave those
lands to their kids. Because if you want to preserve agriculture over the long term, you're
going to need large contiguous tracks of ag land, and once they become subdivided no
matter how, you know, valid the reason, that's lost.
So, their position is that when we, when we move to IAL, that really needs to be those
large commercial agricultural operations. And maybe the land size is large and you have
a way to piecemeal it out and lease it over long term to farmers so it's not requiring
people have to own 50 acres, you know, or be able to have that capital investment. But
you have an ability to be able to do something like an agricultural, you know, not a, not a
subdivision as we know it, but to be able to lease out something so that a farmer can have
a long term property interest to be able to get a loan to operate a business on that sub
portion of the property.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and this is one of the challenges we have when we talk
about agriculture because the nature of what particularly these family subdivisions,
they're mostly on agricultural lands.
MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: But, you know, you don't want to disrespect the local families
because some of this property has been in their hands in, in, in their families for
generations. So, I, I can see their attachment to the land but I guess that's one of the
challenges that we're going to have to face here at the County because a number of times
we've tried to I guess or I've tried to look at rural and agriculture issues and even look at
a moratorium. And people get totally up in arms because there are all these family
subdivisions that exist out there and they don't want to be prevented from building their
homes or subdividing their land and giving it to the kids. So, I don't know, I guess some
of the tools we have available would be to try to work with them and maybe do some
kind of swap or purchase the development rights or buying the land outright and then
maybe relocating to an area that they would be able to build the kind of homes that they
want and have the services that they want, too.
MS. THIELEN: And you might be able to come up with something where you're saying this is
what we want to do in the future and we'll, allow a one time option. You, you, either,
you know, if you want to do that subdivision you have to pass the following test and it's
available to you over the next two years and then it's gone. So, make a choice and then
we need to, to move on.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and the other thing too that's happening on a lot of our
land not so, well, I guess even some of our rural is Condominium Property Regime.
MS. THIELEN: Mm.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Where they're not subdividing so a lot of the triggers that we would
ordinarily have to review they're not there.
MS. THIELEN: Yeah.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. The Chair is going to call a ten-minute recess. And if you have any
questions or want to talk about this some more if you'd make some notes so we don't
lose it. It's very important. So, we're going to take a ten-minute recess. We'll
reconvene at five minutes after eleven. . .. (gavel) ...
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RECESS:

10:52 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:06 a.m.

CHAIR BAISA: .., (gavel). .. The Planning Committee will come back to order.
Hokama, you have a question for the presenter?

Chair

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Director Thielen, just prior to the
recess in listening to your, your remarks regarding the agricultural component what
we've learned and what we can do to move forward. Is the Department of Land and
Natural Resources because of the huge inventory of parcels statewide already in sync
with what your office is doing regarding those lands that are classified agriculture under
their stewardship? So have they been informed of your, your office's intentions and are,
are they also when they looking at leasing State property to various requestors that they
already in sync with the objectives we're trying to move forward?
MS. THIELEN: Yes. And they, and they, Sandy Kunimoto who is the Chair of the Department
of Agriculture, you know, has been obviously leading a very large part of this and has
had discussion with the other cabinet members as well. So, when we submitted the
Administration package last year, it included the changes on what's the permissible uses
on the Agricultural District trying to, you know, focus more on making sure that you
have bona fide agriculture operations going on if you're going to have farm dwellings.
I'm trying to think of the other things. On that, that planning for bringing the plans
forward to the Land Use Commission, that would include Department of Land and
Natural Resources getting involved in the discussion about the plans because there may
be areas that they would like to see move into the Conservation District as well. So,
yeah, we have included DLNR in the, in the conversation.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Has there been to your knowledge any, any type of
inconsistency on the use of those State inventory lands? Whether it be under
conservation or agricultural classification, has the, has the Department allowed certain
uses that you would say would not generally be considered a permitted use in those
categories?
MR. THIELEN: I am not familiar with all the specifics, but I know, you know, I've read in the
newspaper at times where, you know, action has been taken against tenants.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And again I'm just trying to get a good feel for how
your sister agencies are working with you in a coordinated matter to show us just one
State position on this item. So, I appreciate your comments. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. And once again thank, thank you,
Ms. Thielen, for Part II. I wanted to ask you on Page 10 of our handout. I don't know
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what slide that is . . . (laughter). . . and, and the title I guess of the slide was Rural
Planning Framework, Rural Planning Principles. Are you there?
MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, what I wanted to ask is as ... it caught my eye
that it, it, it mentioned distinct from urban-MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --when referring to rural. Now, what happens like in any
county where urban and rural may abut each other.
MS. THIELEN: Mm.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And I think you mentioned Montgomery County, Maryland
and Washington, D.C. kind of encroaching more and more. Is there a part of the planning
process to, when you have that abutment that you plan to have a buffer or a softer
transitional zone in between?
MS. THIELEN: You can do it different ways. Now, in Montgomery County one of the things
they wanted to do is they wanted to have a defined edge. They wanted to avoid, you
know, rural just being a transition like we'll, we'll call it rural now and then as we start to
grow it will change into urban and then we'll move rural out a little more and then a little
more and a little more. So, they, what they said is we want to definitely have an edge and
to contain our growth within this area because that's how we're going to preserve that
open space, those working lands, and those other things. So what they did is sometimes
they strategically, when they would go and purchase development rights, they would
deliberately do it right around the perimeter of those urban growth areas to prevent those
lands from becoming transition lands and to keep that edge there which would then make
their urban areas growth become maybe more dense, maybe more mixed use type of
environment.
Similarly, in a rural area you may want a rural town and you may want to keep an edge
around that town because otherwise it will just start to sprawl and sprawl itself. And so,
you can have a rural growth boundary and do some planning that would keep that similar
edge. In other cases, you may want to use rural as a transition between urban and
agricultural commercial operations, you know, that, that right to farm that the gentleman
was speaking about earlier because people may have nuisance complaints so you may
want kind of a low density area in between the two with some open space mixed in. So,
you've, you would do a variety of things. In some cases, making it a transition zone may
be appropriate. One of the problems with that is though you've ended up subdividing it
into low density residential, which is then filled up with residences who fight at
transitioning to becoming your more dense area.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. THIELEN: So, sometimes that doesn't work so well.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, on the mainland where I'm sure we don't have that
problem here because our counties are divided by the ocean, is there a cooperation
between different counties when they abut each other to ... under planning and zoning
tried to mitigate that kind of problems?
MS. THIELEN: I think that's kind oflike asking is there cooperation between every brother and
sister. You know it depends on the family. It also depends on the State. Like in
Washington State where they have a Growth Management Act, they say that the
80 percent I think is the, the actual number of the growth must occur within the urban
areas and their growth boundaries. So, the cities are one jurisdiction. The county outside
is another and so certain things have to happen for the city to be able to annex some of
that county land to come into the urban growth area. So there has to be some more
collaboration.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. THIELEN: But you're right in that, you know, we have an advantage in Hawaii in that you
are the entire island. You can plan for, you know, the three islands that you have. And
so, you can deal with both sides of the, the coin. The flip side is you have a greater
burden. You have to have a greater expertise and you have to have ordinances and tools
and codes that apply to both sides, you know, which is a bigger burden on your Planning
Department then any county has or any city has, which can-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. THIELEN: --kind of focus in one area.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And right below on that same slide it has 11 rural
planning principles outlined in the Rural Policy Project Workshops reprint.
MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Was that handed out to us? Is that part of the bounded one?
MS. THIELEN: Yes. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. Alright, you know ...
MS. THIELEN: Those, those are excerpts of the two different workshops that we had. So,
there's more information and then there's going to be more details about the specific
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tools and ordinances in that guidebook that's going to be published sometime over this
next year.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Any more questions for Laura? Otherwise, we can move on.
Alright. Director, moving on.
MS. THIELEN: Okay. This will be the, the quick one.
CHAIR BAlSA: The lights, please.
MS. THIELEN: Okay. The first point is the one we just talked about. Unlike a lot of the states
on the mainland you are a unified county. You include the cities, the towns, the
agricultural areas so you can plan for them. You don't have to negotiate an agreement
with an abutting jurisdiction. Your County, too, I would like to compliment you folks. I
was talking with your Chair earlier, you have been on the cutting edge on many things.
You've adopted an erosion-based setback for your shoreline areas, which the State has
talked about for many years and has not done. You've adopted agricultural sliding scale
to attempt to deal with, you know, instead of having a checker board of one acre lots, you
know, can we have something else in place. So, I, I think that you're also on the, the
verge of adopting your General Plan. So, you are in a very good position, your County in
particular, to move forward on this initiative.
And the next slide. I want to show you what Big Island County has updated their General
Plan about two years ago and they adopted a, what's called a LUP AG, which is their
Land Use Pattern Allocation Guide map. And this is, shows you that in their recent
adoption, they identified important agricultural land on their maps. Now, this was done
prior to the passage of Act 183. So they used criteria that they developed to identify the
important agricultural lands, but they've gone ahead and mapped it. And their land use
plan is following that now. Their zoning is going to follow that. In addition to that IAL
category, they also have orchards and other agricultural lands. These are not the
exclusive lands in that, you know, they may have pasturelands under a different category
but this is their IAL, their Kona coffee, their Hamakua Coast area.
In your General Plan update, your ordinance I understand directs the Planning
Department to identify urban growth boundaries by map for the first time. And the
Planning Department has been doing a significant amount of work on the three islands in
your, in your County to develop those plans. This is an opportunity for your County to,
similar to the Big Island, to identify important agricultural lands. While a lot of attention
has been placed on again what's IAL, what's urban, it's also an opportunity to start
talking about what do you do with the other areas. What areas may be appropriate for
rural? Do you want to have defined edges to certain areas? Do you want to develop new
rural towns? Do you want to protect existing rural towns so that they're able to maintain
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character and a sense of place in the face of growth over the next 20 years? So, I think
again your County is in an excellent position right now.
The next slide I'm going to jump to is in addition to your plans, we would encourage you
to take a look at again those tools that we talked about. If you remember back to those
red, the slides where we had kind of the red area where you would have one set of tools
to maintain your rural center, another set of tools to maintain your working landscape and
then your natural resources, and so to start working on putting those into place.
Next slide would be the priorities for change. I'm having trouble seeing what you're
seeing. The next steps as far as the State level goes, and again you do not need to wait
for the State to make many of these changes. You can identify IAL. You can identify
and plan for your rural areas in addition to your urban growth areas. But if we want IAL
to move forward in the State, we need to get the ag incentives to be adopted and I think it
will be very helpful for the counties to weigh in on that. If you want land to go into the
Rural District where we can have a district that has policies and character that's not
urban, not ag, but can respect that rural character that is so important to people in Hawaii,
we need to redefine how the Rural District is outlined in Hawaii State Law and that's
going to require legislative action.
The Rural District as I mentioned earlier only allows half-acre subdivisions, golf courses,
and small agricultural operations. You actually have far more permitted uses in the
Agricultural District then you do in the Rural. If you want to be able to have a town,
open space, cultural areas, cluster zoning, we're going to need to redefine the uses.
We're going to need to redefine the density. And then if you want to be able to keep that
different market value for those agricultural lands so that farmers can afford them and
that they can be used for agricultural operations, in order to have that different valuation
we're going to really need to strengthen, you know, what is the definition of bona fide
agriculture and when are residential uses permitted onto agricultural land or IAL land.
And then the last bullet is the programs both at the State and the County level to promote
agricultural viability. So the counties are going to be playing a very key role in the
legislative changes because there are so many issues of home rule around this so
Legislators are looking very closely to the counties. And I think it's important for the
Councils and the Administrations to weigh in themselves. I hear an awful lot of people at
the Legislature talking about home rule who are not the direct representatives of the
counties but they're raising the issue. And I think it's important for the Legislators to
hear directly from you folks and, and the mayors.
We hope that you folks would also weigh in on the need to change the Rural District. We
are open to continuing that dialogue with the counties on, you know, who should have
jurisdiction over it and, and how we would manage it. But I think it is important to
change it from that half-acre subdivision picture that we have now because it seems that
there's universal dissatisfaction with that. And with that I'd like to leave you with that
- 40 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 24, 2007

final picture of what we would like to be able to maintain over time and that this is going
to require legislative changes at the State level. That was it.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. If. .. we're going to take a very short two minute recess.
We're going to put the screen up and the lights on and then we will proceed with
questions. If you could hold on .... (gavel) ...
RECESS:

11:22 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:23 a.m.

CHAIR BAISA: .. , (gavel). .. Meeting will come back to order. Members, questions for our
presenters or for our Planning people that are here? Chair Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Madam Chair. I would direct my first, my two
questions at this point to the Director Thielen since eventually I would like her to be able
to enjoy and relax at this meeting.
CHAIR BAISA: Sure. Go right ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Director, I was interested in listening to your comments
regarding the ... our sister county of the Big Island, they already have a map. Have they
decided their approach to the rezoning? Are they going through a, are you aware if it's a
comprehensive zoning ordinance when they go, where they're going to do all the lands
and put it under IAL or is it by piecemeal by request of the landowner or is it going to be
done by districts? Do you have any sense of their approach?
MS. THIELEN: It ... they have in their own County level plans mapped important ag lands. In
order to be classified IAL by the State, the Legislature is the only body that has the
authority to either do that classification at the State level or to delegate it. So, right now,
what the Legislature under Act 183 did is they said okay the Land Use Commission is
going to identify IAL but not until after we adopt incentives. So, at the State level there's
no action being taken to move, you know, to, to designate any lands IAL because we
can't.
Now, I think what the County is doing is that I, I have not heard them say that they have
plans to move forward with comprehensive zoning. What they, what they're doing right
now is they've taken that countywide general plan and the map and they're starting to
update their community plans which are those regional areas. And they're doing north
and south Kona together and that is moving forward and getting close to finalization.
And that will be more specific about the different breakdowns of the uses for the future in
that region. And then I'm not sure what they're going to be doing after that because they
have I think five to eight regions around the island to update the community plans and I
think that's going to take them probably about another five years to complete.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
Is, is there something that your Office would be
recommending to the various counties and to our County on how to deal with certain
request during this interim period of the status quo to the intended changes?
MS. THIELEN: I believe the standard is that the plan is the over guiding, the over arching
policy document that. ..
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, let me be, maybe make it, you know, to, to help the
response that I would like you to think about. When I talk about interim period, Director,
whether it be don't accept any requests for re ... reclassification from agriculture, whether
it be you put a time limit on moratorium of reclassifications to the Land Use
Commission. I'm thinking about-MS. THIELEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --that type of interim measures that you, your office would be
either recommending or suggesting to the counties.
MS. THIELEN: Well, what we're doing is, as I mentioned, when a petition comes up from the
Land Use Commission, we are looking at the county plan. Whatever the current county
plan is or if it's in the process of being updated, working very closely with the planning
department to say what does your plan say is for this area. And if it's not for the
proposed use, then we would recommend that the Commission deny the application.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. THIELEN: I know recently there was a proposal put forward on the Big Island for an area
in Kona for resort development that had been under that last plan update taken off of
resort and put into commercial. And so, the Planning Department is opposing that
proposal based on the grounds that it doesn't fit their plan.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right. Thank you. And if I'm clear on what was presented
to us as a clarification. Currently, what you shared with us was that under rural
classification there is a, at least a consideration to eliminate special use permits. Is that,
is that a good understanding on this, this Committee's ...
MS. THIELEN: Well, again, remember I was talking about a bill that we submitted-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MS. THIELEN: --to the Legislature last year and under that bill remember how rural included
mixed use-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
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MS. THIELEN: --walkable centers, and all that stuff. We proposed that rural permit all those
uses-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MS. THIELEN: --based, and that the county would have the authority to zone within the Rural
District to any of those uses and therefore a special permit was unnecessary.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Wouldn't be required.
MS. THIELEN: So, we eliminated that. You, you wouldn't need a special permit. You would
zone it for-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MS. THIELEN: --a rural center.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is that your office's position, too, with agriculture? Because
I wouldn't mind looking at agriculture in the same manner and eliminating special use
permits.
MS. THIELEN: We would agree.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Director. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Other Members? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. I, I just have one question in your
final presentation, Ms. Thielen, is when, when, when we're considering ag lands to be
identified as important ag lands, are ranching operations included in that? Because I
noticed the Big Island maps, .. .(end of tape, start 3A) . .. Mauna Kea, well, the big
ranches on there seem to be higher up then ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Parker Ranch.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, Parker Ranch. They're higher up the slopes than
what shows on that map as far as being more coastal and low elevation areas. So, are
ranching operations part of this identification?
MS. THIELEN: I believe what the Big Island did is they did identify pastureland separately so
that it was not ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Not, not part of important ag lands?
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MS. THIELEN: No, again, that was their definition of IAL. So, they could put ranch lands in
that. They kept ranch lands as a separate category. I'm looking at the criteria under Act
183 and I don't have my glasses on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Because we heard from the Farm Bureau that, you know,
ranching operations are just as important on ag lands as farming operations. And I'm just
wondering what the State's perspective is on this. Because on Maui we still have some
very large ranch operations and Molokai and, you know, other parts of our County.
MS. THIELEN: The State's perspective we would agree livestock is a part of agricultural
operations, and under the State law definition it's included as well. Keep in mind that
when the Big Island did that map it was before Act 183 had been passed. They were
identifying important ag lands. They were identifying the pasturelands. They were
identifying some other agricultural lands. And the point, the reason I put it up there,
excuse me, is that the, that the County can move forward on this in the absence of
legislative action.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MS. THIELEN: So, how you would define IAL and what you would put in there would be
within your jurisdiction.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, it wouldn't have to be specified as part of Act
183 as far as identifying I.. .IAL lands?
MS. THIELEN: You know, again, I'm trying to walk this line. Now, I don't want to tell you but
if, if my opinion would be it takes so long to update your plans and it's such an intensive
effort with community outreach, you may as well consider these criteria. Because if
these, you know, if the Leg. does pass ag incentives, you'd want your plan to be able to
then go forward to the Land Use Commission and get those lands identified for IAL. So,
I think it's worthwhile to look through these criteria to say that we've evaluated them,
and you know, yes, we're utilizing them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, you're, you're saying that there is some flexibility on,
on the criteria to identify important ag lands?
MS. THIELEN: The criteria, again, what it, what the Legislature was saying is it shouldn't just
be soils. There's other things. We've tried past classification systems based primarily on
soils but everybody has been raising, you know, a whole host of things. So, here's a list,
here's a list of things to be taking a look at.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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MS. THIELEN: But the ultimate decision for the County would be, you know, what lands do
you have here that would fit within these criteria that you folks think should be included
in important agricultural lands.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Ms. Thielen. Mahalo, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Director Thielen, I just wanted
some clarification on one of the slides on your last presentation. It's Page 16 and the title
of it is, "What Can Be Done to Promote Sustainable Agriculture and Rural Planning".
And it states improvements to rural land use policies and standards and development
codes or adoption of rural tools may be needed to effectively implement general plan
objectives and policies for rural planning. My question relates to improvements. Can
you cite some specific areas of various land use policies whether it be in this County or
other counties that need improvements in order to help promote sustainable ag in rural
planning?
MS. THIELEN: Well, we were just talking about the minimum lot size. I think, for example,
how do you manage your density? Right now, under the State law it's a minimum lot
size of one acre. Obviously, when your County was taking a look at that, you thought,
you know, okay, as you're breaking up larger parcels that can get to be an awfully dense
area that's not really going to support agricultural operations. So, how do you preserve
larger tracks of land? And you came up with that sliding scale, agricultural zoning. So
that's an example of, you know, a change. And, you know, we would support and we're
recommending to the Legislature for the Rural District, similarly, get rid of this half-acre
minimum lot size. Don't replace it with a five-acre minimum lot size 'cause that doesn't
really help you either. Instead start talking about, you know, how does a county create a
density for a rural town, and then how do you manage areas outside that would allow the
county to maybe zone certain areas to have it clustered. It makes your housing more
affordable. It makes your infrastructure more affordable. It makes your cost of services
delivered to those people more affordable. You know, so then you would have dedicated
open space in other areas maybe to preserve a natural resource or something. So that's
another example of a policy that would need to be changed.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good. I think that will be really helpful for us in our planning
and looking at our policies in the future as well. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I guess, you know, nothing is simple is it? We've been dealing with
this for a long time. One of the things I don't see, you know, as one of our I guess your
tools or our tools is the use of cooperatives in terms of farming-MS. THIELEN: Mm.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --co-ops. Has there been any legislative measures that would
actually either help fund the start up, or you know, pilot programs for agricultural co-ops?
Because a lot of the smaller parcels don't have the big acreage so they've got a smaller
crop but they're growing similar crops. So, my thought would be an agricultural co-op is
a great way to help promote this. So, do you know of anything that's taking place at
either in your office as a recommendation or at the State Legislature that would help
promote this use?
MS. THIELEN: I don't know anything about that specifically. Again, that would, going back to
take a look at the incentives that came forward, I know there was a lot of talk about what
needs to be in place to help the businesses, you know, start up and survive over time.
The Department of Agriculture really wanted that conversation to focus on incentives for
agricultural operations, not incentives for landowners to designate, but incentives for
agricultural business to start up and thrive. So, I'd have to get more information to you
from them about the ultimate package that was delivered, and clearly because the
Legislature is inviting people to come back this next session, additional ideas can come
forward.
Again, I would recommend a very strong position with the Legislature. No matter what
ag incentives you are advocating for. Regardless of whether they pass or not, just pass a
package because you can always come back the next year and advocate for them again
and again and again. And we've got to get that process started. So, go in and advocate
for things that you think would work well, but also make sure to send a message to the
Legislators that, you know, whether you agree with my idea or not I want 'em passed.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I think that what package of incentives we can
offer, we do offer some things and I noticed a few of the points that had been made in the
first portion of your presentation were regarding I guess support for agriculture-MS. THIELEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --operations or, you know, like the University of Hawaii. And Maui
County is supportive through CT AHR of, you know, that program and so that's helped.
Also, some of our pest management or invasive species helped to control the spread of
fireweed and other invasive species. So, I think that we're doing our part, you know, and
some of these things may already be in place, and Ag parks and we're looking at the
possibility of expanding into a larger acreage. So, I can see where we can do the best that
we can. Has anyone to your knowledge come forward yet, I know the Big Island, you
know, predated the passage of the legislation so they don't have the incentive portion of
their important agricultural lands as part of their package, but has any county come
forward with any kind of package or indication for review from your Department?
MS. THIELEN: They wouldn't have to do any package for review from our Department. I'd
say that the counties are proceeding with their general plan, community plan updates.
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They are aware of this. They're waiting, you know, they're, they're just, they're going to
plan for the most part. And if the Legislature passes the incentives, you know, they'll,
they'll come in with their plans for adoption. I'm trying to think if there was something
that I just left ... my coffee just wore off. I'm sorry it's, it's gone. It was really, really
good though.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Those are always the best thoughts the ones, the ones that escape,
right?
MS. THIELEN: I do want to say, you know, Montgomery County, Maryland talked a lot about
ag incentive programs and some of them were things like farmers markets and buy local
and linking that restaurant industry and the hotel industry and tourism industry up with,
you know, here's some local produce and marketing programs and things like that that
were, are very integral I think to ag surviving over time. I'm not sure how many of those
are included in the guidebook. I don't think they are. But I think the, the resources are
there to be able to take a look at other programs. Your Economic Development Office
may be instrumental in some of that.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and just one final comment. I did have an opportunity
to participate in the rural planning meetings that you had had. I think I attended-MS. THIELEN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --at least one of them and I think I was not able to attend the final
adoption. But I found it very interesting that many of the people who are contributing or
who contributed to the formation of this plan were really from the development
community. That was the one thing that I found a little bit disconcerting. I can
understand, you know, they're looking at rural development towns, town centers, that
type of thing but I also look at many of the farm families that would want an opportunity
to have some of the rural uses but not necessarily, you know, want their land zoned or
continue to zone at ago So, I think that for me anyway I was, I wish, I wish there had
been a wider representation of more rural families that had participated in that and I
didn't see that. I saw realtors, I saw developers, a couple of our planning officials, and I
think myself, and maybe one other Legislator. And that I think is one of the shortfalls
from that perspective that I saw in, in this process.
MS. THIELEN: That may have been in the Maui meeting but I can, we did Hilo, Kona, Oahu,
Kauai, Maui twice each and we got a very broad representation. Very large attendance at
the, at the Hilo meetings. Were all, were very interesting. Oahu we had a lot of
environmental groups there, a lot of land use groups there. So, we did get a pretty broad
perspective. For those of you who missed it, the first workshop we ran a series of slides
and we asked people is this rural or is this not. And it was very interesting because it was
the same slides for each community. The, the difference between the answers, you know,
Oahu is like, oh, Haleiwa is rural. And everybody else on the neighbor islands are like
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there's a yellow line on that street, that's not rural, that's, you know, town. And so, it, it
was a real difference.
And we found that ... (sigh) ... in many cases talking to developers about this 'cause
this is real high level, it's not talking about what am I going to permit you to do on your
land. This is talking about, you know, what, what would you want, what kind of
character would you want to see maintained. I had developers from Kona come to me to
say, you know, 40 years ago we told the State we want an airport, we want a highway,
you know, we want development. And they said we forgot to pay attention to how it
looks. And now, they realize that they lost a lot in, in the character there and they are
fighting to try and preserve it. So, some of the developers in Kona were some of the
more vocal contributors towards design guidelines, you know, things to be able to, to
maintain this sense of place because they're well aware of what they've lost. So, we, we
got a good, good spectrum of input. Maui was a little rowdy.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. I'm, I'm, I'm really glad. I know there were some good
comments also made by people from within the development community,-MS. THIELEN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --former planners and people that do architectural or landscape
projects here. So, they did offer the type of comments that you were stating. But I don't
know I guess I always look at what is the makeup when you're developing any kind of
plan, what's the level of participation. Because the end product, the broader the
participation I think the more reflective of the community it really is. And perhaps, you
know, that's something that we need to really focus on, too. I know we have Focus Maui
Nui which we've had much broader participation. So, some of those themes did
resurface in, you know, this planning process. But it was kind of interesting at least from
my perspective to see who attended. Thank you very much for your information.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Members, any further questions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I have for the Department, Chair, if! may?
CHAIR BAlSA: Sure.
MS. THIELEN: Excuse me, I'm sorry, if, if, are you folks done with us?
CHAIR BAlSA: Are we done with Ms. Thielen then I can excuse her?
MS. THIELEN: Okay. Good. Because we ...
CHAIR BAlSA: You're excused. And thank you very, very much. Also, Ruby, thank you for
being here today.
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MS. THIELEN: Okay. I'd like to stay but we do have a plane to catch so we're kind of limited
on how long we can stay. But I wanted to thank you very much for inviting us to come
here today. It was a wonderful opportunity to be able to speak directly to the Council
Members. I really enjoyed working with your Planning Department. You have some
excellent planners there but it's nice to be able to speak with, with you folks directly and
to answer your questions, to hear what questions you have, and have the dialogue.
I'd like to leave you also with another technical guidebook. We've shared this with your
Planning Department but I'll leave it with your staff. But this is a low impact design on,
you know, again how you can design in rural areas so that you have a less impact on the
environment. And we would be delighted to continue providing technical support at your
request.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. And you can be sure you'll hear from us.
Hokama.

Chair

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes. Thank you. This would be for our Planning Director.
Mr. Hunt, can you tell us how much the County has expended on, on professional
consultants or studies to assist you in participating with, with this initiative, please?
MR. HUNT: I'm not aware of much money at all that we've budgeted for that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Pretty much everything is done in house then, Director Hunt?
Your planners are the ones that are compiling, doing, doing due diligence so that they can
inform you and then you share that with your counterparts in this Office of State Planning
in discussions on these items?
MR. HUNT: As far as I'm aware.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, I'm trying to understand what did the Legislature then
have in mind even if it's nominal, the use of their funds to assist the counties to produce
all these maps and other requirements that are on our shoulders?
MR. HUNT: One of the things that, that I found beneficial was the rural workshops. I'm not
sure that's the, the actual name of them but the workshops that they did hold throughout
the communities where there was discussion on what, if we go down this road on revising
the Rural Districts what, what should they look like. What, what does rural mean to
people. So I think there was some benefit to that. So I think the State is helping us to
some extent.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I'm just, want to make sure you grab whatever monies
due the County from the State. You, you just shared an interesting choice of words,
Director, should we go down, choose to go down this path, which means there's a
possibility we're going to retain status quo. Is that what you're telling us that that would
be one of the things before the Council is don't change anything and keep it the way it is?
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MR. HUNT: Can I give you a long answer to that? The, the general plan update right now
encourages urban densities in our urban growth areas.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: And as you folks are well aware that begs the question what do we do with the
areas outside of the urban growth areas. And I think it's important and I think there's a
lot of consensus that we need to protect the agricultural lands.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: And that's more of a, of a protection measure. We need to actually adopt
regulations that would protect it. And then comes the question, okay, what do we do with
the secondary or less productive lands. And one of the questions that the State is posing
is, well, perhaps we should redefine rural and then consider that for those areas. That is a
lessening of, of regulations on lands outside the urban growth areas. And there's some
justification for that. A rural center can be beneficial to, to people who live in that area.
There's also some problems. A rural center from my experience is difficult to keep it just
to rural services. The intent is to serve the local residents. Well, how do you keep
someone from just opening up any commercial business in there?
So, there, there are issues with, with rural zoning. The amount of minimum lot size. A
half-acre lot is, consumes a lot less land then a larger lot. Perhaps, and we talked a little
bit about buffers and, and being close to urban growth boundaries perhaps a larger lot
size is appropriate. But I think what the County needs to decide and I, I'm okay with
supporting and even advocating to the State to, to allow counties to have rural zoning as
this new definition would provide. But the question then comes back to the counties how
much should we have, given the fact that our general plan is going to be encouraging
urban densities, which is generally considered smart growth. It consumes less land. It's
less costly to put out infrastructure. Do we really want a lot of rural zoning? And I think
that's a question that we need to answer. I, I think perhaps some of it or, or perhaps we
should allow some but again it's not consistent with, with a smart growth urban density
type of development. I'm sorry if that was long winded.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, no. I, I, I appreciate the effort you took to respond to
that question, Director. And I would say maybe from the conceptual planning standpoint,
some of the intentions of the direction we are being asked to consider makes a lot of good
sense. But whoever, what I, I take from your comments that we need to see if there's a
way for us to incorporate it well. And I'll use our island in particular, Lanai, I don't think
you would have anyone disagreeing that it's a rural community, rural lifestyle, rural
atmosphere. However, everything that is within this rural community is under urban
classification and zoned urban, but it's rural and the USDA would say it's rural so you
qualify for Department of Ag funding because you're rural.
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And, and so, I, I share that because I can see some of the things that Director Thielen was
sharing with us this morning that is not going to be simple with existing communities that
believe it, believes and I, I would say, I take it back. It's more than just a belief. We live
a rural community life but it's all urban under, under the County's jurisdiction. So, for
me, I'm trying to find out isn't ... is that something we're going to deal with the mapping
side more first, then you take care the verbiage in the general plan? Is there a method
your Department is trying to deal with this issue?
MR. HUNT: The method that we're using is, the first step is to deal with the urban growth
boundaries or urban growth areas and I think we have a pretty good handle on that. Now,
we're starting to say, okay, what do we do about the lands outside. And you're probably
going to hear from us very soon about agricultural lands. And there's, there's a lot of
debate and concern that allowing up to 14 two-acre lots isn't really preserving
agricultural land.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MR. HUNT: So, you're, we're, we're starting, that's our next step and then after that I think will
be the rural. Again, the rural is a loosening of the, of the regulations and, and we need to
deal with the agricultural lands first.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: My, my last question to you and I, I know the Chair's
requirements on time. We have just updated our Country Town Zoning Ordinance
whereby besides guideline we changed certain language in the Code that view it now
as ... what was the, what did we change? We went from guidelines to guidelines and
standards, excuse me, standards, which means this is what we want. This is what is and
this is what we expect and this is what we want the County to move forward on as
standards of development for Country Town which provides the protection for rural
environment as I, I would view it.
So, since we have all these tools already in place and the, well, I'll only speak for our
County, wouldn't that make it easier for you to come up with a, a, hopefully, a broad
enough rural concept for us that would take in account the Makawao's, the Paia's,
Kaunakakai, Lanai City, the, the Hana--thank you very much--East Maui, Kula, well,
portions of Kula that already has these protections? And then isn't this something we
should be asking the State, they should consider what we've already incorporated,
legislated, and utilized?
MR. HUNT: I think our, I think the zoning that you referred to is a good start from my
perspective and I'll ask Joe to help me out on this later. But my perspective is that affects
the rural centers and so that's one of the tools in, in the tool chest. But there's other tools
that I, I really think we should consider for instance on cluster development or T ...
TDR's, Transfer of Development Rights.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
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MR. HUNT: And we don't have that on the books. So, again, it's a good start but there's other
things we could add.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I would just, in closing, just ask you in representing
our County at this level of, executive level that you deal with your peers that I hope it's,
everything is tied in with this potential adjustment land uses to the allocation and
minimum levels that water will be provided to those components. Because we can talk
ag all we want. If the water use plan for the counties or the State functional plan on water
doesn't complement what we're trying to drive, then I more than likely will bet that it's
going to fail. Because we haven't take care the main component that we've heard from
Farm Bureau, individual farmers, whoever wants to utilize land comes down to
availability and dedicated allocation amounts of water. So, I would really ask for you to
get that message squared away for us, please. Thank you.
MR. HUNT: I'll, I'll carry that message forward.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Are there any further questions? If not, I'd like to defer this
matter.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR BAlSA: And at this time, I would also like to adjourn the meeting and thank everyone
who came today. Thank my Committee. Thank the staff, the presenters, and the
Administrative resource people. Thank you very much. I think it was a very good
presentation and I certainly learned a lot. Thank you very much for being here .
. . . (gavel) ...

ADJOURN:

11:55 a.m.

APPROVED:

~C.~
G ADYS C. BAlSA, Chair
Planning Committee
pc:min:070724

Transcribed by: Cathy Simmons
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